# August 31, 2023

#### Dear Student:

We extend a welcome back to returning students and congratulations to new students on your acceptance to the Career Technology Center. This handbook is designed to provide you and your family with information pertaining to the policies, procedures, and regulations of the Career Technology Center. Adherence to these policies, procedures, and regulations will enable you to gain the most from your studies at the Career Technology Center and adherence to these policies will assist you in achieving success in your career objective.

Students and parents have the responsibility to read the Student Handbook and follow the procedures and rules outlined. Students are encouraged to use this handbook as a reference and refer to it frequently; many of the concerns and questions frequently asked by students are addressed within.

Parents, guardians, and others who influence the actions of the student should also discuss the contents of the handbook to assure that the student understands the expectations of the Career Technology Center. A thorough review and understanding of the contents of the Student Handbook and the expectations of students enrolled in the Career Technology Center will help you, and your family, avoid consequences and inconveniences which will occur when procedures and rules are not followed. Individual instructors, as well as, administrative personnel, will discuss all pertinent issues included in the handbook.

We have addressed the topics and concerns most frequently identified by students and their families. If you have concerns or questions that have not been addressed in the Student Handbook please do not hesitate to contact Dr. Carlucci, Director, or Mr. Carachilo, Assistant Principal for clarification. We welcome your comments regarding this handbook or on any matter that will contribute to the success of the students enrolled at the Career Technology Center.

We welcome you to the Career Technology Center community and we will ensure that you will be granted the opportunity to learn.

Sincerely,

Mr. Dominick Carachilo Assistant Principal

Laninich Carachile

#### **OUR MISSION**

It is the mission of the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County (CTCLC) to prepare all students for career pathways in the global marketplace by providing experiential learning with the skills and knowledge needed for postsecondary education and employment opportunities that result in self-sufficiency or family-sustaining wages.

# **OUR VISION**

The Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County (CTCLC) will innovate, educate and provide the highest quality opportunities for all of our students while continuing to be a valuable community partner.

# SAFE SCHOOL ENVIRONMENT

Cameras and professional staff supervise the facility. Special attention is devoted to entrances and corridors leading to and from exterior areas and it is required that all entering guests provide proper identification and register in the main office. Specific instructions are provided upon registration. School policies govern all visitors as well as our student population and municipal and state codes are enforced.

In order to create and maintain an orderly environment within the school, students and guests are required to adhere to the rules and regulations as set forth in the 2023-2024 Student Handbook and to abide by the decisions of the administration in disciplinary matters.

# **TELEPHONE NUMBERS**

Main Office	
Pupil Services	ext. 123
Business Office	ext. 194
Nurse	ext. 150
FAX	570-342-4251

# **HOURS OF OPERATION**

8:00 AM - 4:00 PM

Morning Session	8:15 AM - 11:15 AM
Lunch	11:15 AM - 12:15 PM
Afternoon Session	12:15 PM - 3:00 PM

# **JOINT OPERATING COMMITTEE**

School District	<u>Representative</u>
Carbondale	. James Dovin
Dunmore	. Francis Kranick, Treasurer
Forest City	. Stephen Ursich
Lakeland	Mark Solomon, Vice President
Mid Valley	. Glenn Cashuric
North Pocono	. William Burke, Secretary
Scranton	. Sean McAndrew
Valley View	. Joseph Mondak, President
John P. Finnerty, Esq., Solicitor	. Dougherty, Leventhal & Price,
John Marichak, Superintendent of Record	Dunmore School District

# **ADMINISTRATION**

Dr. Karla Carlucci	Director
Dominick Carachilo	Assistant Principal
Kyle Linko	Supervisor of Career & Technical Education
James McHale	Chief Financial Officer
Colleen Stepanovich	Continuing Education Coordinator
Janet Yontas	Practical Nursing Director
Lisa Bieri	Special Needs Coordinator
Ren Petrausk	Director of Operations
Alexandra Zero	

# **FACULTY**

Automated Manufacturing Technology Dean Bak	er
Automotive Technology Bryan Peck, Daniel Wa	.rd
Building Mechanics Trades	ry
CarpentryShane Malicl	
Child DevelopmentKristine Lences	
Collision Repair Technology Brian Pisaro	
Computer Networking InfrastructureJohn Mora	
Cooperative Education	
Cosmetology Christine Menichini, Kristina Petrauska	
Culinary ArtsStephen Anania, Mark McAndre	
CybersecurityThomas Czach	
Digital Communications Paul George	
· ·	
Electrical Construction Technology	
Guidance	
Health/Medical Assisting ServicesJaclyn Chesnic	
HVAC/rTE	
Illustration and DesignPatrick McLar	
MasonryJason Sherida	
Mathematics Kristen Smith, Jessica Ogonosky, Elizabeth Reifl	er
Medical/Clinical Assistant Jennifer Sav	VO
Plumbing and Heating TechnologyTE	3A
Print Production TechnologyRebecca Rine	
Protective Service OccupationsJonathan Coyn	
School NurseMargaret Wals	
Service Occupations Arielle Conn	
Welding TechnologyLandon Yo	

# **INSTRUCTIONAL AIDES**

Marissa Bernardi Christine Pazzaglia Brenda Rhodes Isabella Torda Taryn Wells

# LAB ASSISTANTS

Mackenzie McAndrew	Service Occupations Lab Assistant
Kathy Czachor	Automotive, Protective Services
James Thomas McHale	Health Occupations, Mathematics

# SUPPORT STAFF

TBA	Administrative Assistant
Mauri Olivetti	Practical Nursing Confidential Secretary
Deb Killino	Main Office Secretary
TBA	Confidential Secretary
Dean Pencek	Technology Coordinator
Janet Pencek	Student Data Coordinator
Ann Rousseau	Staff Accountant
Teri Cerep	Administrative Assistant to CFO

## **CAFETERIA STAFF**

Marlene Toolan......Cafeteria Coordinator
Pamela Bird
Debra Symons
Diana Pigga
Breanna Toolan

# MAINTENANCE/CUSTODIAL STAFF

Richard Harvey William Hofacker Michael Hudson Christopher Lewis Brian Major Damien Mulderig Rohlend Teal Carl Yaklic

#### SAFETY

Safety is the most important part of every program at the Career Technology Center. Protective safety equipment and clothing, face shields, safety glasses and goggles, respirators, hard hats, safety shoes, coveralls and clothing specific to each instructional area must be worn in all instructional areas as conditions warrant. Loose fitting or excessively baggy clothing, flip-flops, sandals, and open toed shoes are a safety hazard and cannot be permitted in instructional areas. In some areas; jewelry also presents a safety hazard. Individual instructors may determine that certain jewelry items are unacceptable in their specific shop area due to safety concerns. Students not appropriately attired, as determined by their individual instructor, shall not participate in shop work and may consequently see a reduction in their class grade.

Safety and the opportunity to learn is the determining factor in the development and enforcement of school rules, policies, and procedures.

Instructors will inform students and their guardians of the safety rules and of the specific safety clothing that must be worn in their instructional area.

Instructors will determine what is safe and appropriate for their area. Students are expected to conform to these standards. Nonconformance to Instructor standards will result in disciplinary action taken against the individual in noncompliance. Everyone (students, instructors, administrators) is responsible for safety within the school. Students are encouraged to develop, with the assistance of CTCLC staff, safe practices that will assure a safe environment for everyone. CTCLC is dedicated to providing a safe and secure environment for both its students and staff, affording the student the opportunity to learn in a secure environment and affording the instructor the opportunity to instruct their students in a safe and secure environment. In achieving this safe environment, individuals are encouraged to disclose any information regarding any situation that may compromise the safety of any individual or individuals within the school.

The policies and procedures of CTCLC pertaining to health and safety, emergency, and crisis management may be reviewed by contacting the office of the Director during normal business hours.

#### THREAT ASSESSMENT TEAM

In 2019, the Pennsylvania General Assembly passed act 18 of 2019, which amended Pennsylavania's Public School Code by adding Article XIII-E, Threat Assessment. One of the provisions of this article requires that school entities establish a Threat Assessment Team (TAT).

CTCLC's TAT consists of our School Safety and Security Coordinator as well as individuals with expertise in school health, counseling, administration, and special education. Some members from CTC's SAP team and Safe2Say Something Crisis Team are also members.

Both students and staff are trained annually on information pertaining to the TAT including how to make anonymous tips through the Safe2Say app and anonymous referrals through our SAP Referral Process. More information about CTCLC's TAT can be found under the Joint Operating Committee tab under Joint Operating Committee Policies, Policy #236.1 or by calling the school.

Be here notified that CTCLC is mandated by the Pennsylvania Department of Education to maintain a working relationship with local authorities and is required to report to these authorities incidents related to violence, weapons possession, drug possession and/or abuse, harassment or any other activity which impedes the orderly and safe operation of the educational institution. This policy will be enforced with the intention of maintaining a safe and secure learning environment.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Mission, Vision, and School Safety	2
Telephone Numbers	3
Hours of Operation	
Joint Operating Committee	3
Administration, Faculty, Instructional Aides	
Staff	4
Safety	6
ACADEMIC INFORMATION	10
Program Area Change During the School Year	10
Enrollment Limitations	10
Progress Reports and School/Parent Communication	10
Report Cards	10
Grading	11
Student Activities and Qualifications	11
Cooperative Education	12
Guidelines for Principal's Recommendation	12
Student Awards	12
PUPIL SERVICES	
Guidance	
Parent Conferences	
Career Resource Counseling	14
Student Support	
School Nurse	
Use of Medications	15
Student Injury	
Automated Notification System	16
Textbooks/Equipment	
Fundraising	
ATTENDANCE	
SCHOOL RULES	21
Recreational Items	
Hazardous and Annoying Materials	
Use of Special Tools, Equipment, and Materials	22
Theft	22
Vandalism	
Dress and Grooming	23
Body Piercing	24
Access to Building/ Student Tardiness	
Transportation	25
Flag Salute	25
Leaving Class/School Without Permission	25
Passes	
Procedures Regarding Arrest Warrants	26
Cafeteria	26
Cafeteria Procedures	26
Fighting	26

Dangerous weapons Policy	
Harassment	27
Unlawful Harassment	28
Controlled Substances/Paraphernalia	30
Reasonable Suspicion/Testing	30
Acceptable Use/Computer Policy	31
Student Entertainment/Communication Devices	32
Student Driving	33
Tobacco and Smoking	36
Alternative to Suspension Policy	36
Profane Language and/or Behavior	36
Search of School Property	
Search of Student and Student Belongings	37
Gang Policy	
SCHOOL DISCIPLINE and CONDUCT POLICY	38
Specific Guidelines	39
Minor Discipline Cases	
Major Discipline Cases	
School Suspensions	
Expulsions	
Hearings	
Corrective Physical Intervention	41
Reasonable Physical Force	
Infractions of Discipline/Conduct Code	
Level 1	
Level 2	43
Level 3	
Level 4	
In-School Detention	47
Restricted Movement	
Appeals Procedure	
CTCLC Student Assistance Program (SAP)	
CTCLC Bullying Prevention	52
GENERAL ÓPERATION INFORMATION	53
School Lockers	53
Lost/Found	53
Student Searches	53
Visitors	54
Emergency Cards, Handbook Forms, Shop Permits	
Student Involvement with Media	54
School Calendar	55
Safe School Practice	56
FERPA (Family Educational Rights and Privacy)	56
Google G Suite for Education	
Google G Suite for Education Signature Page	
Handbook Signature Page	
Attendance Policy Acknowledgement Signature Page	
Media Consent Waiver	

# CTCLC PROGRAM AREA CHANGE DURING THE SCHOOL YEAR

Students are encouraged to make a sound program area career choice when they apply for enrollment to CTCLC. However, there may be a situation when a student may want to change his/her CTCLC program area. Changing a student's program area can be a challenge to both the students and instructors. Requests for a program change will be reviewed cooperatively with the student, parent(s) or legal guardian(s), guidance counselors, and program instructors. Students wishing to change their CTCLC program must meet with their counselor regarding their issues, concerns, and ideas. The counselor will schedule a visit(s) to the student's areas of interest. Through the visit, the program instructor will evaluate the appropriateness of the change. The student will then complete a change of course form that will be signed by the instructor, counselor, student, and parents.

# **ENROLLMENT LIMITATIONS**

When PM enrollment limitations are necessary, selected AM students will be required to return in the AM for their Level II progression. The AM students will be selected for AM retention following the 3rd marking period with the selection based upon review of the following Criteria: **Program Grades, Attendance, and Discipline**.

Students selected to return in the AM for Level II will be notified early in the 4th marking period to facilitate schedule adjustments at their sending schools. Students selected to return in AM for Level II progression may also choose to enroll in a different program (AM only) or return to their sending school for a full schedule the following year.

# PROGRESS REPORTS SCHOOL/PARENT COMMUNICATION

Progress reports are issued mid-way between each report card for students who are in danger of failing the quarter. Progress reports are posted to both the parent and student portal. They are issued so that the student and the parent are aware of the student's progress. All students' progress can be monitored through the parent portal, which can be accessed on the school's website. Parents or guardians are strongly encouraged to contact the CTCLC Instructor and Guidance Counselor to discuss student progress.

# **REPORT CARDS**

Reports cards are issued four (4) times per school year. They include grades earned, teacher's comments, and daily absences. Report cards will be posted on both the parent and student portal, with parent/guardian(s) notification via the automated calling system.

#### GRADING

Students are graded according to their performance in class and the proficiency they demonstrate. This includes theoretical knowledge of their chosen field and application of this theoretical knowledge to lab work. Development of the characteristics of a good employee, such as teamwork, attendance, and work ethic will also be considered in assigned grades. Grading is as follows:

93 – 100	Excellent
85 – 92	Above Average
76 – 84	Average
70 – 75	Minimum Requirements
0 - 69	Failure (F)
1	Incomplete

When a student accumulates five (5) or more unexcused absences in a quarter, the highest possible grade they will receive for that quarter is a 60.

If a student fails at CTCLC, they will not participate in Awards Night. They may receive a certificate of completion in their program but cannot participate if they fail a math credit they are taking at CTCLC.

#### STUDENT ACTIVITIES

Students are encouraged to participate in career technical student organizations. The student activities at the Career Technology Center include:

- National Technical Honor Society
- SkillsUSA
- Student Council
- Student Ambassador Program

The qualifications for membership into the National Technical Honor Society are as follows:

- No CTCLC quarter grade below 80 10th, 85 11th & 12th grades
- Cumulative CTCLC average of 90 or above
- CTCLC student of at least 2 (two) years
- Absences: 5 permitted senior year
- Review of Discipline Records, no suspensions in/out of CTC
- Cumulative Home School average of 80 or above with no course failure for 10th, 11th, and 12th grade
- Nominations made senior year by Instructor

For other student activities the criteria is the same, excluding grades.

#### **COOPERATIVE EDUCATION**

Cooperative Education (Co-op) is and educational program that combines classroom learning with real-world work experience. It provides students with the opportunity to gain practical skills and knowledge in a professional setting related to their field of study. Co-op programs are designed to enhance students' academic learning by providing hands-on, experiential learning opportunities.

Cooperative Education includes:

- Capstone
- Paid/Unpaid Internships
- Clinical Experiences
- Diversified Occupations

Co-op is designed to be a culminating skill development program. It is a unique plan of education that integrates classroom learning with supervised work experience in the business community. The co-op program provides an opportunity for seniors and 4th quarter juniors to be employed for a ½ day during school hours in the field where they have received technical instruction at the CTCLC. The work is monitored by the coordinator of the program from CTCLC and a mentor at their workplace. They receive full credit for their employment hours and earn an hourly wage equal to or greater than minimum wage.

# GUIDELINES FOR CTCLC PRINCIPAL'S RECOMMENDATION

- 1. Program of Study (POS) Instructor Recommendation
- 2. Adherence to CTCLC's Attendance Policy (Junior Year)
- 3. Above Average CTCLC Grades (85 100) (Junior Year)
- 4. Passing all classes at sending district
- 5. Review of Discipline record
- 6. Displays Strong Hard and Soft Skills
- 7. Level II (4th quarter Junior) or Level III (Senior) student
- 8. Approval from their sending school principal

Adherence to the CTCLC handbook and employer policies is required for continued participation in the cooperative education program.

### STUDENT AWARDS

Each instructor may select a senior student at the end of the school year as "Student of the Year" for outstanding achievement at the Career Technology Center. Faculty, administration, and staff also nominate a "Student of the Month" at CTCLC. The selection is based on grades, attendance, involvement in school activities, attitude, discipline, etc.

# **PUPIL SERVICES**

## **GUIDANCE**

The School Counseling Program at The Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County is a comprehensive program, developed to meet the academic, personal/social, and career development needs of all students. Students. Parents/Guardians, and Staff are encouraged to meet with the School Counselor to address any student concerns. Academic development is addressed through the teaching of time and task management, effective study skills, and identifying related course work in preparation to choose from a wide variety of substantial postsecondary options, including college. Social and personal issues will be addressed by assisting students in developing interpersonal skills, respect for self and others, coping and conflict resolution skills, decision-making, and goal setting. The School Counselor will assist students in career planning by determining areas of interests and aptitudes, selecting a program that meets their career/occupational goals, and expanding their individual options. Goals and objectives for community involvement also include parent and family collaboration to support and nurture students' goals and improve the probability of successful completion of the program.

The counseling relationship between students and their school counselor requires an atmosphere of trust and confidence. However, students are informed that exceptions to confidentiality exist in which counselors must inform others of information they obtained in the counseling relationship in order to prevent serious and foreseeable harm to students, themselves, or others, and if it is legally required.

#### PARENT CONFERENCES

Parents are encouraged to request a conference to discuss student performance. The Guidance Department will complete all arrangements and establish a time and date for the conference.

#### CAREER RESOURCE COUNSELING

There is a need for the communities that surround the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County to fully understand the services and program opportunities that exist for the students and parents of Lackawanna County. Our Career Resource Coordinator works closely with our sending districts to support all endeavors to bring appropriate career resources to the students and parents of the member districts.

Our goal is to provide our students with the opportunity to develop the knowledge and skills required to become useful, productive, and self-respecting citizens capable of maintaining employment and continuing their education within the scope of their career. We accomplish this by integrating academic and career/technical education while still meeting the industry skill standards. Leadership, teamwork, and communication skills are critical to success in the workplace. The programs of study are designed to provide students with the qualifications necessary to obtain an entry-level position or to continue their education at a post-secondary institution.

### STUDENT SUPPORT

Students requiring specially designed instruction will have their needs met according to their Individualized Education Plan (IEP). CTCLC employs a Special Needs Coordinator who attends IEP meetings to help IEP teams develop appropriate career and technical programming for students with special needs. The Special Needs Coordinator then shares the information with the appropriate CTCLC staff to ensure proper delivery of the IEP. Students may always seek extra help from their instructors if they do not understand an assignment, if the work is difficult, or if they have been absent and have missed assignments and class discussions. Students should arrange a conference directly with the instructor before or after school, or at a mutually convenient time during the day.

#### SCHOOL NURSE

Afull-timenurse is available for emergency health care. For nonemergencies, students must secure a written pass from their teacher before visiting the nurse. Other than administrators, the school nurse is the only member of the school staff who can excuse a student from school during the day due to illness or injury. Students who become ill during school hours are not permitted to leave school property without the express permission of a CTCLC administrator. Students will only be released to the custody of the parent or the parent's designee. The designee of the parent must be an adult with photo identification. Accurate emergency contact information must be submitted to the school and kept current. It is the responsibility of the student, parent, or guardian to notify the school if and when this information changes during the school year.

Students are also required to provide the school with pertinent information regarding allergies, health, and medical history. This information must be submitted at the beginning of each school year and up-dated as conditions change during the school year. This will insure that CTCLC can respond in an efficient and proper manner should the need arise. Students may be excluded from certain types of shop work until the information is on file.

On-going health care for student illness or injury is the responsibility of the student's personal physician.

#### **USE OF MEDICATIONS**

It is recommended that prescription and non-prescription medicines be administered at home whenever possible. However, CTCLC recognizes that some students would be unable to attend school without receiving medication during the school day. Therefore, CTCLC will permit the administration of prescription and non-prescription medication only under the following conditions:

Non-prescription and prescription medicines cannot be taken in school without an accurate and properly completed "Authorization for Medication During School Hours" form.

The form is located on page 69 of the CTCLC Student Handbook. It must be submitted to the school nurse if medication is needed during school hours. Additional forms may be printed from the CTCLC website: www.ctclc.edu

Medications must be brought to school in a sturdy container labeled by the physician or pharmacy (prescription medications) or by the parent (non-prescription medications). This label should contain the student's name, the name of the medication, and the dosage.

CTCLC will incur **NO** liability for the use of unauthorized drugs.

# STUDENT INJURY

In the event of a student being injured, every effort will be made to contact the parent by phone. If the parent/guardian cannot be reached, then authorized persons may make whatever arrangements might be deemed necessary for transportation of the student to a hospital or available physician.

- 1. Any student who becomes ill, hurt, or injured while attending CTCLC is required to report the injury to the instructor and report to the CTCLC nurse.
- 2. A student must first report to the school nurse prior to being released for illness. The nurse will contact the student's parent or guardian. Students are not to call from cell phones for pick-up. Students may use the phone in main office to contact their parent or legal guardian.

# AUTOMATED NOTIFICATION OF EMERGENCY SCHOOL CLOSINGS, EARLY DISMISSALS, DELAYED START TIMES, AND DAILY ATTENDANCE

CTCLC follows the snow delay and cancellation of the Scranton School District. Students should adhere to their sending school snow delay and cancellation schedule as well. CTCLC will also send notification via an automated calling system for such events as well as when the student is absent from CTCLC. You may be notified in several ways: telephone, email, and/or text message. CTCLC must have your correct contact information for you to receive these messages. (If there is no announcement, school is open).

When the sending district does not transport students, students are not required to attend CTCLC.

#### **TEXTBOOKS/EQUIPMENT**

Textbooks, reference books and lockers are provided for students on a loan basis and their care and security are the responsibility of the student. If damage or loss occurs, the student must replace or repair the item at their expense. Legal action will be taken if necessary. Lockers must be locked at all times.

Major equipment and many tools required for the educational program are provided for student use. Damage or loss to the tools for reasons other than normal use and care will require repair or replacement at the student's expense. Intentional damage to tools, equipment or property will be considered as vandalism and can result in suspension, removal from the Career Technology Center program, and/or legal action.

Students are encouraged to purchase their own textbooks, reference books, and tools, as these items will be of value to them in their chosen career. If students are using their own personal tools, these items must be brought to CTCLC by a parent. The items then must be collected and turned in daily to the main office.

Some career areas require students to purchase specialized safety equipment, small tools, and/or uniforms. These are required for a student to participate and earn credit.

#### **FUNDRAISING**

Only the building administrators may authorize student fundraising programs within the building or on school property. Solicitation or sale of merchandise to students or staff is prohibited unless authorized by the building administrator.

Any student who chooses to participate in a fundraising event for a school club or organization assumes full responsibility for all goods to be sold that were entrusted to the student and for all money that is raised as a result of selling those goods.

Students with outstanding obligations may not be eligible to participate in extra-curricular activities at CTCLC. Outstanding obligations will be referred to the District Magistrate for collection.

Fundraising must adhere to the Pennsylvania Nutritional Standards guidelines.

#### **ATTENDANCE**

The Joint Operating Committee requires that school age students enrolled in the career and technical school attend school regularly, in accordance with state laws. The educational program offered by the center is predicated upon the presence of the student and requires continuity of instruction and classroom participation. The Joint Operating Committee recognizes the positive correlation between regular attendance and achievement.

Attendance shall be required of all students enrolled in the center during the days and hours that the center is in session, except that the building administrator or teacher may excuse a student for temporary absences when receiving satisfactory evidence of mental, physical, or other urgent reasons that may reasonably cause the student's absence. Urgent reasons shall be strictly construed and do not permit irregular attendance.

The Joint Operating Committee considers the following conditions to constitute reasonable cause for absence:

- 1. Illness medical professional excuse.
- 2. Quarantine medical professional excuse.
- 3. Recovery from accident medical professional excuse.
- 4. Death in immediate family. (2 days)
- 5. College or military visits (2 days) with documentation.
- 6. Court mandated absences court provided excuse needed.

Absences shall be treated as unexcused until the center receives a written excuse signed by the parent/guardian explaining the reason for the absence, to be submitted within three (3) days of the absence. Student-signed excuses shall not be acceptable. The fact that a parent/guardian provides a written explanation for the absence does not, in itself, qualify the absence as excused. *Parent excuses are not acceptable. Vacation days are considered unexcused.* 

Seniors that accumulate 15 days unexcused and/or fail to complete the NOCTI written or NOCTI practical test will not walk on stage on Awards Night, NO EXCEPTIONS. Seniors who are not permitted to walk are required to remain at CTCLC until senior grades are due at their home school.

The Joint Operating Committee may report to appropriate authorities infractions of the law regarding the attendance of students below the age of seventeen (17). The Joint Operating Committee shall issue notice to those parents/guardians who fail to comply with the requirements of compulsory attendance that such infractions will be prosecuted in accordance with law.

Attendance need not always be within school facilities. A student will be considered in attendance if present at any place where school is in session by authority of the Joint Operating Committee; the student is receiving approved tutorial instruction or health or therapeutic services; the student is engaged in an approved and properly supervised independent study, work-study or career education program; the student is receiving approved homebound instruction.

The Joint Operating Committee shall permit a student to be excused for participation in a project sponsored by a statewide or countywide 4- H, FFA or combined 4-H and FFA group upon written request prior to the event.

The Joint Operating Committee will recognize other justifiable absences for part of the school day. These shall include medical or dental appointments, court appearances, family emergencies, and other urgent reasons.

Students must be present until 9:30 A.M. and 1:30 P.M. in each session to receive attendance credit. Students who leave before these times must present a valid Doctor's excuse.

Medical and dental appointments must be verified through the center prior to the date of absence, if at all possible. Students may not be excused if the appointment cannot be verified. Court-related appointments in which early release is required must be verified and cleared through the administration prior to the date of absence, if at all possible.

The Director or designee shall develop administrative regulations for the attendance of students which:

- 1. Ensure a school session that conforms with requirements of state regulations.
- 2. Govern the keeping of attendance records in accordance with state statutes.
- 3. Distribute annually to staff, students, and parents/guardians Joint Operating Committee policies and school rules and regulations governing student attendance, absences and excusals.

- 4. Impose on truant students appropriate incremental disciplinary measures for infractions of the center's rules, but no penalty may have an irredeemably negative effect on the student's record beyond that which naturally follows absence from class learning experiences.
- 5. Ensure that students legally absent have an opportunity to make up work.

Attendance records, including instances of tardiness, shall be a factor used to determine a student's eligibility to participate in cooperative education programs and extracurricular activities.

When a student is absent from the center, s/he shall be restricted from all center functions and activities for that day, both onsite and offsite.

Upon return to school from an absence, a written excuse explaining the reason for the absence must be provided to the Program Instructor within the next three (3) school days. This excuse must be signed and dated by the parent/guardian and any medical professional or court-provided excuse must be attached.

When a student's accumulated unexcused absences reaches five (5) days, a notice will be mailed to the parent/guardian and sending school principal advising that the student is being placed on attendance probation.

When a student's accumulated unexcused absences reaches ten (10) days, a mandatory conference will be scheduled by the sending district and the parent/guardian and the CTCLC will be notified of the date and time. This conference is intended to provide affected parties the opportunity to present additional information and/or extenuating circumstances and develop an action plan for improving attendance.

Failure by any party to attend the ten (10) day conference automatically forfeits their ability to raise extenuating circumstances at a later date.

When a student's accumulated unexcused absences reaches fifteen (15) days, the student may be dis-enrolled from their CTCLC program and returned to their sending school for resumption of a full academic schedule. If this situation occurs during the fourth marking period, the student may be allowed to complete the school year at CTCLC, but will not be enrolled at CTCLC for the following school year.

When any student's accumulated absences reach thirty (30) days (excused and unexcused) an administrative review meeting will be held to determine if continued enrollment in the CTCLC program of study is appropriate.

# SENDING SCHOOL EXCUSED

The CTCLC sending schools must provide advance notice to the CTCLC if they wish to excuse any or all of their students from attendance on a regularly scheduled school day. This includes any early dismissal or late start school days and any other days not listed on the sending schools' annual school calendar. The notice shall include the reason for the excusal and the names or numbers of students excused. Students leaving for homeschool events cannot leave until verification of the event is sent to CTC from the homeschool.

CTCLC will only recognize ten (10) such sending school excuses as acceptable absences. Additional days absent will be counted against the students' five (5), ten (10), fifteen (15), and thirty (30) day limits identified above.

Two (2 days) bereavement for immediate family and two (2) days for college or military visits, with documentation, are permitted.

## SKIPPING MATHEMATICS CLASSES

The use of mathematics is an integral part of every program of study taught at the CTC. It is imperative that students taking CTC math classes attend daily. In addition, successfully completing mathematics is necessary for meeting graduation requirements at your home school. Because of the importance of math in subject areas, below is a list of guidelines that have been established when a student skips(does not report to)math classes when they are present at CTC. Disciplinary action for continuing to skip mathematics classes will increase and may lead to out-of -school suspension.

- · 1st math class missed 1 day detention
- · 2nd math class missed -2 days of detention
- 3rd math class missed -3 days of detention
- 4th math class missed Parent conference scheduled with home school administration as well to discuss student's current performance in math and the possibility of receving a full-time schedule at the student's home school.

# **EARLY DISMISSAL EXCUSES**

Students are not allowed to leave school prior to dismissal because of work or social obligations.

Early dismissal requests will be reviewed by the CTCLC administration and a determination will be made as to whether the reason for the early dismissal will be considered an excused dismissal. Dismissals that will be excused include notifications from a medical facility, approval from school nurse that student is ill and needs to leave, approval from sending

district due to student participating in some type of extracurricular activity, Courtmandated absences – court- provided excuse needed, death in immediate family. Repeated requests will be reviewed critically. For a dismissal to be marked excused, students must submit proper documentation within three days of the early dismissal. Failure to do so will result in the student receiving an "unexcused dismissal" for that day.

Requests must be presented to the main office prior to the student leaving and contain the specific reason for leaving, time & date of dismissal, parent/guardian signature & valid phone number.

Students leaving prior to the CTC's dismissal time to participate in sports, theater, or other extracurricular activities must have the homeschool provide the CTC with a schedule of event dates and times for approval. The CTC must approve the schedule prior to the student participating in the event(s) and leaving for the day.

Students leaving for an event not approved by the CTC, abusing this privilege, or not notifying the CTC of a change in the event schedule will have the absence recorded as "Unexcused Dismissal" and may face disciplinary action.

All students leaving early **MUST** sign out at the front office. Students leaving early and who are being picked up by an adult must:

- a. Have the adult come into the building to sign them out.
- b. The adult must be registered on the student's record.
- c. The adult must provide the office with proper identification.
- d. Any other adults coming to pick up students must have authorization and confirmation from the parent/guardian verified before the student can leave the building.

Students participating in a cooperative education experience must remain in school until the end of the school day when attending their required CTC classes.

Four unexcused early dismissals will result in a detention. Offenders accumulating more than four unexcused early dismissals can result in increased discipline measures up to and including suspension, as well as loss of driving privileges. They will also be mandated to have a parent/guardian pick the student up whether the student drives or not for any early dismissals afterward.

# Forgery of notes and excuses:

The forging of notes, excuses, etc. is considered a serious violation of school policy. Any student found guilty of forging a note will receive disciplinary action as per the disciplinary code. Also, if the note is found to be using an outside entity's information the entity will be notified

# SCHOOL RULES

#### RECREATIONAL ITEMS

Skateboards, rollerblades, scooters, roller sneakers, etc., shall not be permitted on school premises at any time. This includes the outside premises of the school. Should a student possess any of these recreational devices on school property, the device will be confiscated by office personnel, instructor, etc. and will be released only to the parent or guardian of the student. Disciplinary action will be taken.

# HAZARDOUS AND ANNOYING MATERIALS

- 1. Students are not to be in possession of any type of inhalant, including but not limited to such items, which are non-edible, paint, gasoline, mouthwashes and/or breath fresheners with alcohol content. Additionally, containers with unlabeled contents are not permitted in school.
- 2. Matches, lighters, hazardous chemicals, laser pointers, fireworks, knives, firearms, weapons, and any facsimiles of any type are not allowed in school.
- 3. Deliveries of food, candy, flowers, balloons, etc., are not permitted during the instructional day without administrative approval.

# USE OF SPECIAL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIALS

In some program areas the use of specialized tools, equipment, and materials is required. To ensure the safety of all students and staff, detailed rules regarding the use and maintenance of these items are enforced. It is the responsibility of the student to be familiar with these classroom-specific rules and to follow the procedures as outlined by the teacher. Although they may differ slightly per program area, the policies regarding these items state:

- No tool or equipment is to be removed from a classroom by a student.
- Tools and equipment of a sharp or potentially dangerous nature must be used under the supervision of the teacher and at no other time.
- Students must use tools and equipment of a sharp or potentially dangerous nature safely as required by the nature of the program.

Violation(s) of these and more specific classroom rules will result in disciplinary action.

#### THEFT

The removal of school or personal property without permission is considered theft. Discipline, restitution, and/or referral to local law enforcement may be imposed.

Vandalism is the willful destruction or damage to school or personal property on school grounds. Discipline, restitution, and/or referral to local law enforcement may be imposed.

#### DRESS/GROOMING

All students will arrive and leave the Career Technology Center in their CTCLC approved uniform or sending school uniform. Failure to do so will result in disciplinary action that may include suspension.

Students are expected to dress in appropriate attire. Appropriate attire is clothing which permits the student to work safely, does not detract from the educational process, and which presents a positive image of the individual and the school.

The following items are inappropriate or are a safety issue and will not be allowed inside the building during school hours.

- · mesh or see-through clothing
- · tank tops or low cut dresses or blouses
- · half shirts, tube tops, or midriff shirts
- shorts or skirts extending to less than 3 inches above the knee
- skin-tight clothing such as spandex and yoga pants (may be worn if covered with appropriate long top that extends to 3 inches above the knee)
- · torn, tattered, or frayed clothing
- · sunglasses, unless prescribed by a physician
- pajamas
- bedroom slippers
- · shoes with fixed and/or retractable wheels or rollers
- gloves
- · excessively baggy clothing
- · Inappropriate head gear including hoodies
- · flip-flops, sandals, and open toed shoes
- · wallet chains
- gang-related apparel
- sexually suggestive, crude or vulgar commercial lettering or printing and/or pictures that depict drugs, tobacco, alcoholic beverages, racial/ethnic slurs, weapons, or gang affiliation
- any other item deemed to be a distraction or safety concern.

Clothing shall be neat, clean, safe, and cannot disrupt the instructional process. Pants are to be properly worn, not below the waist. Underwear is not to be exposed.

Shoes, sneakers, or other appropriate footwear must be worn at all times. NO OPEN TOED SHOES ARE TO BE WORN INSIDE THE BUILDING AT ANY TIME.

Each instructor will provide specific information regarding dress and

CTCLC recognizes the right of students to wear jewelry and other adornments. However, certain jewelry and adornments, and the manner in which they are worn or displayed, may not be appropriate under certain circumstances and may pose a danger to the safety or welfare of the student, other students, or staff.

The administration and/or teaching staff may require that students remove any jewelry or adornments that might be reasonably considered as posing a threat to the safety of the student, other students, or staff.

#### **BODY PIERCING**

As it may present a health or safety hazard within our total school environment, students with certain pierced body parts will be excluded from participation in specific activities and from specific programs. In many careers, body piercing does not conform to the industry standard and is viewed as unprofessional. The appearance and hygiene of a student should not endanger others, be offensive to others, or interfere with the educational process. Action will be taken as required to eliminate the condition that exists.

In the case of the day-to-day school environment, the administration and/or teaching staff will require that students remove any jewelry or adornments while in the classroom and/or lab which might reasonably be considered as:

- · posing a threat to the safety of the student, other students, or staff
- · posing a threat of interruption of the education process
- affecting the ability of a student to properly speak, hear, concentrate, or otherwise participate in the educational program
- affecting the ability of other students to so participate
- a risk which might result in injury to the student or others in the event of an altercation or other disturbance.

Students refusing to cooperate with the directions of the administration and/or staff with regard to this policy will be excluded from school until they are willing to comply. Disciplinary action will be taken.

#### **ACCESS TO BUILDING/ STUDENT TARDINESS**

For safety and security reasons, all students are to enter and exit CTCLC via the front doors located near the main office. Students arriving after their scheduled arrival time must obtain a Late Pass. Students that accumulate four (4) unexcused tardies will receive a detention. The second offense will result in a second detention to be followed by suspension thereafter.

# **TRANSPORTATION**

Bus transportation to and from the Career Technology Center is provided by, and the responsibility of, the sending school. Questions concerning transportation and incidents that occur on the school bus should be reported to an administrator at the sending school, as well as to an administrator at CTCLC.

All students are to be dropped off and picked-up at the front entrance. Students are not permitted to board buses other than those designated by their sending district.

Walking off CTCLC school grounds to access vehicles or obtain a ride is prohibited during the school day. Student drivers dismissed early by their sending school must be parked on school grounds and have a valid CTCLC permit or they will not be dismissed until regularly scheduled times.

#### **FLAG SALUTE**

Opening of school activities include the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. All students will be encouraged to participate in this patriotic activity. Students whose personal beliefs prohibit such actions are not required to participate in this activity provided the school is notified of such, in writing, by the parents or legal guardians. However, nonparticipating students must not disrupt or otherwise infringe upon the rights of others to participate in this action. Disruption of this ceremony, by any student, will result in disciplinary action.

#### LEAVING CLASS/SCHOOL WITHOUT PERMISSION

The school is legally responsible for all students once they arrive at the CTCLC campus. Leaving the building or school grounds without permission will result in disciplinary action taken against the student. Parents and the sending school will immediately be notified that their student left school property without being granted administrative permission.

#### **PASSES**

Students will not be permitted to leave their classrooms without authorized hall passes. Students are expected to 'sign out' any time they leave their classroom and carry with them a valid hall pass. Students who are in an unauthorized area without express permission from either their instructor or an administrator will be subject to disciplinary action.

#### PROCEDURES REGARDING ARREST WARRANTS

If a warrant for the arrest of a student has been issued, and a constable or other law enforcement official has been sent to locate that student to execute the warrant, the student may be removed from school grounds so as to not cause unnecessary delay to the issuing authority. The school will attempt, as a courtesy, to contact the parent or guardian to notify them of the student's status. The school cannot hold the student or refuse removal of the student from the premises.

### **CAFETERIA**

All food, whether brought in or purchased at the school, must be consumed in the cafeteria only.

#### **CAFETERIA PROCEDURES**

- 1. Students will report directly to the cafeteria for their lunch periods.
- 2. Students should properly discard trash and return trays, dishes, and silverware to the appropriate cafeteria area.
- 3. All food and drinks must be consumed within the cafeteria. Food and drinks are not to be removed from the cafeteria. Bottled water is allowed in classrooms at the instructor's discretion.
- 4. Screaming, yelling, or other loud noises will not be tolerated.
- 5. Students are not permitted to bring glass containers into school.
- 6. Students who throw food or any object in the cafeteria will face disciplinary action.

Each student is responsible for the removal of dishes, utensils, etc., and the cleanliness of the area they use.

#### **FIGHTING**

Fighting is a physical or verbal assault on other students or school staff. While effort will be made to determine who provoked the incident, all parties involved are subject to reprimand. Physical or verbal fighting is a behavior that can be prevented by avoiding or walking away from the person or persons with whom there is an existing problem and by notifying an instructor, guidance personnel, or administrative personnel of the problem before it escalates into a physical confrontation. Fighting mandates an automatic suspension up to and possibly including a 10 day suspension from school following an informal hearing. The appropriate law enforcement agencies will be notified and charges may be filed against all involved. The local Magistrate determines the fines and court costs.

#### DANGEROUS WEAPONS POLICY

Weapons and facsimiles of weapons are forbidden on school property; concealed or not. No student shall go on to the school premises with a firearm, explosive, weapon, knife, any dangerous or illegal instrument, or any instrument represented as such.

No student shall interfere with normal activities, occupancy, or use of any building by exhibiting, using or threatening to exhibit or use a firearm, explosive weapon, knife, other dangerous or illegal instruments, or any instrument represented as such. Any student violating this policy will be suspended and reported to the police, where legal action may be taken in accordance with Act 26 and Section 1317.2 of the Pennsylvania School Code.

For purposes of this policy, school premises shall consist of the school, school grounds, school buses, or any premises, grounds or vehicles used for official school purposes.

#### **HARASSMENT**

In striving to provide a safe and positive learning environment; harassment regarding an individual's race, religion, ethnicity, or disability is viewed by CTCLC as unacceptable, and will not be tolerated. Harassment by individuals such as staff members, students, contracted individuals, and vendor is prohibited by CTCLC. Any student, who feels any other individual is harassing him/her, must communicate to that individual or individuals that the behavior is found offensive and must be discontinued. The student must also report the incident to his/her instructor, guidance counselor, building principal or any faculty or staff person. All complaints will be investigated expeditiously and substantiated complaints will lead to corrective action taken by the CTCLC administration.

Threatening, bullying or any intimidating behavior is also prohibited by CTCLC. Any student who feels intentionally intimidated, bullied, or threatened by another individual must communicate to that person that the behavior is found threatening or intimidating. The student must also report the behavior to his/her instructor, guidance counselor, building principal or any faculty or staff person. Any student who is found, through report and/or investigation, to be intentionally intimidatin

#### UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT

CTCLC strives to provide a safe and positive learning climate for students in the center. Therefore, it shall be the policy of the center to maintain an educational environment in which harassment in any form is not tolerated.

CTCLC prohibits all forms of unlawful harassment of students and third parties in the center. CTCLC encourages students and third parties who have been harassed to promptly report such incidents to the designated employees. Complaints of harassment shall be investigated promptly, and corrective action will be taken when allegations are substantiated. Confidentiality of all parties shall be maintained, consistent with the center's legal and investigative obligations. Neither reprisals nor retaliation shall occur as a result of good faith charges of harassment.

For purposes of this policy, harassment shall consist of verbal, written, graphics, or physical conduct relating to an individual's race, color, national origin/ethnicity, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation, or religion when such conduct:

- 1. Is sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects an individual's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity or creates an intimidating, threatening, or abusive educational environment.
- 2. Has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with an individual's academic performance.
- 3. Otherwise adversely affects an individual's learning opportunities.

For the purpose of this policy, sexual harassment shall consist of unwelcome sexual advances; requests for sexual favors; and other inappropriate verbal, written, graphic, or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

- 1. Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of a student's academic status.
- 2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used at the basis for academic or work decisions affecting the individual.
- 3. Such conduct deprives a student of educational aid, benefits, services, or treatment.

4. Such conduct is sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive that it has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with the student's school performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment.

Examples of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include but are not limited to sexual flirtations, advances, touching, or propositions; verbal abuse or a sexual nature; graphic or suggestive comments about an individual's dress or body; sexually degrading words to describe an individual; jokes; pin-ups; calendars; objects; graffiti; vulgar statements; abusive language; innuendos; references to sexual activities; overt sexual conduct; or any conduct that has the effect of unreasonably interfering with a student's ability to work or learn or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive learning or working environment.

Each student shall be responsible to respect the rights of their fellow students and center employees, and to ensure an atmosphere free from all forms of unlawful harassment.

The building administrator shall be responsible to complete the following duties when receiving a complaint of unlawful harassment:

- 1. Inform the student or third party of the right to file a complaint and the complaint procedure.
- 2. Inform the complainant that s/he may be accompanied by a parent/guardian during all steps of the complaint procedure.
- 3. Notify the complainant and the accused of the progress at appropriate stages of the procedure.
- 4. Refer the complainant to the Compliance Officer if the building administrator is the subject of the complaint.

A student or third party who believes s/he has been subject to conduct that constitutes a violation of this policy is encouraged to immediately report the incident to the building administrator or a center employee.

An employee of the center who suspects or is notified that a student has been subject to conduct that constitutes a violation of this policy shall immediately report the incident to the building administrator.

If the building administrator is the subject of a complaint, the student, third party, or employee shall report the incident directly to the Compliance Officer.

The complainant or reporting employee is encouraged to use the report form available from the building administrator, but o r a I complaints shall be acceptable.

Once a complaint has been received, the complaint process shall be in accordance with Policy #248 of the approved policy manual.

# **CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES/PARAPHERNALIA**

CTCLC recognizes that the abuse of controlled substances is a serious problem with legal, physical, and social implications for the whole school community. As an educational institution, the center shall strive to prevent abuse of controlled substances.

For purposes of this policy, controlled substances shall mean all:

- 1. Controlled substances prohibited by federal and state law
- 2. Look-alike drugs
- 3. Alcoholic beverages
- 4. Anabolic steroids
- 5. Drug paraphernalia
- 6. Any volatile solvents or inhalants, such as but not limited, to glue and aerosol products
- 7. Prescription or patent drugs, except those for which permission for use in school has been granted pursuant to Joint Operating Committee policy

For purposes of this policy under the influence shall include any consumption or ingestion of controlled substances by a student.

CTCLC prohibits students from using, possessing, distributing, and being under the influence of any controlled substances during school hours, at any time on school property, at any school sponsored activity, and during the time spent traveling to and from school and school sponsored activities.

# REASONABLE SUSPICION/TESTING

If based on the student's behavior, medical symptoms, vital signs, or other observable factors the building administrator has reasonable suspicion that the student is under the influence of a controlled substance, the student may be required to submit to drug or alcohol testing. The testing may include but is not limited to the analysis of blood, urine, saliva, or the administration of a Breathalyzer test.

#### ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY/COMPUTER USE POLICY

CTCLC strives to afford every student the ability to enhance his or her education through the use of computer technology. Students have access to computers in the classrooms and in specific labs. Students may be required to access the Internet to complete assignments.

The smooth operation of the school's computer network (including access to the internet) relies upon the proper conduct of each user and adherence to strict rules and guidelines for use. If a user violates any of these rules or guidelines, access to the computer network and Internet will be terminated immediately and disciplinary action taken.

Use of CTCLC computers and network is a privilege. Vandalism of any computer, its contents or network, will result in the loss of privileges. Vandalism is defined as any attempt to harm or destroy data of another user, and/or hardware or software associated with the computer system. This includes the creation or transmission of computer viruses or any other activity that disrupts the efficient operation of a computer, computer system, or network. Any act or attempted act of vandalism is subject to disciplinary action, including dismissal or expulsion, and/or referral to the district magistrate or other appropriate legal action.

Students will receive a copy of the Acceptable Use Policy from their instructors and must agree to abide by the policy before access to a computer will be granted. Copies of the Acceptable Use Policy are available from the Principal.

#### CELLPHONES/ELECTRONIC/ENTERTAINMENT DEVICES

Toys, radios, iPods, MP3 players, cell phones, headphones, earbuds, electronic games, cameras, cards, spinners, and other entertainment devices are not permitted in classrooms. Because use and/or possession of these items can cause disruptions in education, staff will confiscate and store these items in the main office until a parent/legal guardian retrieves them. Disciplinary action will be taken.

The use of cellular phones and any devices that have the capability to take photographs, record audio or video, or text message, is prohibited during the instructional school day at CTCLC.

- 1. Cell phones are allowed only in the cafeteria before 8:15 A.M., during scheduled lunches, and after 3:00 P.M.
- 2. Cell phones may be used in the classroom for instructional purposes at the discretion of the instructor.
- 3. Cell phones must remain off during an evacuation.

The Career Technology Center staff assumes no responsibility for lost and/or damage to entertainment/communication devices brought to school by students. Unauthorized entertainment/communication devices used in school by students will be confiscated and released only to a parent/legal guardian. Failure to cooperate with the confiscation will result in an out of school suspension.

Students found to be using cell phones in unauthorized areas during the school day will be subject to confiscation of the prohibited item, as well as subject to the following disciplinary action.

- First offense- Warning. Device confiscated and returned at the end of the day.
- Second offense- Detention. Device confiscated to be picked up by parent or guardian.
- Third offense- Suspension. Device confiscated to be picked up by parent or guardian.

Refusal to turn over phone will result in immediate suspension.

#### STUDENT DRIVING

- 1. Students are permitted the privilege of driving licensed vehicles to school. By law, the school does not have to provide parking for students driving on school property. CTCLC assumes no liability regarding student driving or any damage to a vehicle on school property. Permission to drive forms may be obtained at the main office.
- 2. Any student found abusing the driving and parking regulations will have her/his driving privileges revoked. Other means of transportation will have to be found, such as home school busing or parent drop-off and pick-up.
- 3. When a student fails to fulfill his or her obligations as a student at CTCLC, driving privileges may be revoked at any time and the parking permit fee *will not be refunded*.
- 4. Should the student decide to drive to school, the student will be responsible for getting to school on time. Students who drive to school must find their own transportation to and from school should their vehicle break down for any reason. Traffic, accidents, and vehicle malfunction are not considered excused absences. This also applies to students who ride along with a student who drives to school every day.
- 5. When a student accumulates four (4) unexcused absences in one (1) quarter or eight (8) total unexcused absences, they must forfeit their parking permit and the fee will not be refunded.
- 6. Students enrolled in the morning session who drive are required to arrive prior to the beginning of classes. Classes begin at 8:15 A.M., and students utilizing transportation other than that provided by the home school are required to be in class at 8:15 A.M. Student drivers arriving after 8:15 A.M. are to report to the main office for a late pass. Students enrolled in the afternoon session who drive are required to arrive prior to the beginning of classes. Classes begin at 12:15 P.M., and students utilizing transportation other than that provided by the home school are required to be in class at 12:15 P.M. Student drivers arriving after 12:15 P.M. are to report to the main office for a late pass. When a student is late eight (8) times, they must forfeit their parking permit and the fee will not be refunded.

All afternoon students that drive will be excused at 3:00 P.M.

While on CTCLC grounds the following rules are to be adhered to:

- No loitering in the parking lots. Immediately enter building upon arrival.
- 15 M.P.H. speed limit.
- All directional and stop signs obeyed.
- All drivers are to yield the right-of-way to school buses and pedestrians.
- All students are to park in designated student parking area only. (Parking lot adjacent to green house).
- All drivers will display a valid parking permit. This permit must be hung from the rear view mirror.
- No use of tobacco, other drugs, or alcoholic beverages is permitted in vehicles on CTCLC property.
- Students are not permitted to remain in their vehicles or congregate in the parking lot area prior to the beginning of school and during lunchtime. Students are to go directly into the school building. No student is permitted in the parking lot area or at his/her vehicle during scheduled class/lab time without proper authorization by administration.
- Students who ride to school with other students must submit a rider permit obtained from the CTCLC office. Students transporting other students without proper permits on file will be subject to disciplinary action. Students who have not filed rider's permits and are found riding with a driver will be subject to disciplinary action.

Student parking is considered a privilege by this school; therefore please follow the rules and park in designated areas for student parking. All students parking on school property must display a parking permit. Permits may be purchased through the Principal's office for \$15.00. Permits must be hung from the rear view mirror and be visible from the outside. If a permit is lost or stolen, the student is responsible for replacement at the same cost. Permits are not transferable from one student to another.

There are a limited number of student parking permits, Permits are distributed on a first come, first served basis and each class will be given a specific time frame to obtain their driver's permit. Seniors not getting their permit within the proper time line will relinquish their parking spot to a lower classman.

Students are not permitted to leave school property without permission. Once a student is on school property, the student may not leave without administrative permission.

Any student who is parked on CTCLC grounds without a parking permit will be given only one (1) warning. The next incident, the car will be towed at owner's expense.

#### TOBACCO AND SMOKING

Smoking, use of tobacco, electronic cigarettes, vaporizers, vaping liquid, or possession of these items in any form on school property is not permitted (Pennsylvania Anti-Smoking and Clean Air Law, September 1, 1989). Students violating this policy (law) will be subject to disciplinary action. Violators will be referred to the District Magistrate. Be advised that consequences include suspension from school and a parental conference.

# **ALTERNATIVE TO SUSPENSION PROGRAM (ATS PROGRAM)**

The Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County's tobacco and vaping policy carries a mandatory suspension as outlined in the Student Handbook. However, because we feel the loss of education to these students is costly to all concerned, we have decided to become proactive in reference to tobacco and vaping use in school. Therefore, we have adopted a program called "Catch Your Breath" for the school's Alternative to Suspension Program (ATS). The program is offered as an option to students who face suspension for violation of the school tobacco and vaping policy for the first time. The program consists of four sessions, each session lasting for approximately 50 minutes of instruction.

The sessions address the following issues:

- Facts of Student Tobacco Use
- Comparison of Smoking and Vaping
- · Long- Term Effects of Vaping
- · Addiction and the Brain
- Influence of Social Media
- · Strategies for Quitting
- · My Future Plans-Tying it All Together

For students who choose the ATS program, attendance is mandatory. If the student is excessively late or misses a session, the full mandatory suspension will be issued and submission of the violation to the local magistrate. Parents/Guardians will be sent a copy of a student contract, signed by their child along with dates and times he or she must attend. Our program will be taught by a certified school contractor and will be scheduled at rotating times throughout the school year. The student must attend the sessions assigned to them.

Again this program is mandatory, if the student is absent from any session or is excessively late, the full mandatory suspension will be issued and submission of the violation to the local magistrate.

# LOUD, ABUSIVE, AND/OR PROFANE LANGUAGE OR BEHAVIOR

It is the policy of the CTCLC to prevent disruptions to school operations, school sponsored functions, and the instructional process. Thus, all persons, including but not limited to, students, parents, visitors, and members of the general public are prohibited from the use of loud, foul, profane, and abusive language, whether spoken or written, or for behavior

portrayed in any manner in the school building or upon school grounds which is intended, or is reasonably viewed by school officials, as being disruptive or causing annoyance, harassment, or inconvenience to others.

All persons are therefore warned that violation of this policy may result in removal from school property by the appropriate authorities. Students may be subject to disciplinary procedures in accordance with school policies and the laws of Pennsylvania. Members of the public may be subject to removal from school property and may be charged with trespassing for failure to promptly vacate the property when directed to do so by school administration. In all cases, violators will be subject to appropriate laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

#### SEARCH OF SCHOOL PROPERTY

The CTCLC supports the elimination of the possession or use of illegal substances/devices. The administration wants to convey a strong message to the community, faculty, staff, and student body concerning the use or possession of illegal substances.

It shall be the policy of CTCLC to permit the administration to periodically invite law enforcement agencies, or other qualified agencies or individuals, to search school property with dogs trained for the purpose of detecting the presence of illegal substances:

- 1. The administration shall authorize the search and have a designee on hand while the search is taking place.
- 2. Parents and students are notified of this policy through its inclusion in the student handbook.
- 3. All school property such as lockers, classrooms, and storage areas may be searched.
- 4. Individual(s) shall not be subjected to a search by dogs.
- 5. Once this notification has been given to parents and students, the CTCLC will have met its obligation to advertise the searches. Additionally, notices need not be given and actual times or dates of planned searches need not be released in advance.

#### SEARCH OF STUDENT AND STUDENT BELONGINGS

With reasonable suspicion, an administrator can require a student to present his/her belongings for the search of prohibited items, illegal substances, or weapons. School personnel, to assist in the search of a student and his/her belongings, may use electronic wands.

#### **GANG POLICY**

The use of hand signals, written or oral comments, stances, stares, graffiti, or the presence of any apparel, jewelry, accessory, or manner of grooming which, by virtue or its color, arrangement, trademark, symbol or any other attribute which indicates or implies membership or affiliation with a gang

or group, whether real or implied, presents a clear and present danger to the school environment, its staff and students, and the educational objectives of the community and Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.

Any person wearing, carrying, displaying gang/group paraphernalia; exhibiting behavior or gestures which symbolize gang/group membership; or causing and/or participating in activities which intimidate or affect the attendance of another student will be subject to disciplinary action including suspension and/or permanent expulsion.ropriate laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

#### SCHOOL DISCIPLINE AND CONDUCT POLICY

Development of good discipline is one of the most important goals of education. Discipline is the development of self-control, character, and proper consideration for other people. Understanding the purposes of discipline in schools facilitates the formation of positive attitudes and assists the student in doing his/her part to become a better person and the school a better place. The climate should produce security and consistency through the establishment of reasonable rules and guidelines that require an interaction based upon mutual respect and cooperation.

In working to maintain the standards of discipline, it is further assumed that all necessary supportive services will be brought into play. These will include (in addition to instructors), the use of counselors, parents, administrators, psychologists, social workers, home and school visitors, local authorities, and all others who might contribute to solving any discipline problem or to maintaining the approved standards of discipline. When a student is suspended from CTCLC they are also suspended from their home school. Students will be restricted from all of CTCLC's functions and activities for the duration of the suspension; onsite and offsite. When the student is suspended for three (3) or more days, a mandatory parent/guardian conference will be scheduled and needs to take place prior to the student's return to CTCLC.

#### SPECIFIC GUIDELINES

It is clearly understood that policies and procedures will vary from school to school and level to level, but are to comply with the guidelines as established in the policy.

All members of the staff shall administer discipline on school grounds consistently. All staff members will consistently administer discipline on school-sponsored activities off school property and during travel on school rented or leased buses and vehicles. The achievement of this result shall be the responsibility of each administrator.

# 1. Minor Discipline Cases

- A. Misbehavior on the part of the student that impedes orderly classroom/shop procedures.
- B. Misbehavior whose frequency or seriousness tends to disrupt the orderly operation of the school. The following are included but are not intended to be all-inclusive:
  - 1. Cutting class
  - 2. Tardiness to school
  - 3. Horseplay
  - 4. Violation of classroom procedure established by instructor or school
  - 5. Minor defacing of school property (writing on desks, walls etc.) Discipline will be left to the discrimination of the administration.
- C. Instructors are responsible for resolving minor disciplinary problems originating in the shop or classroom. While it is not possible to prescribe all the procedures that a faculty member might employ, the following would seem to represent minimal approaches.
  - 1. Faculty member should examine all existing data regarding the student. Any underlying cause for behavioral problems may be secured from the Guidance Counselor.
  - 2. Faculty member discuss with student in private (oneto- one basis) in order to bring about desired behavior. In some cases, several conferences may be necessary.
  - 3. If the faculty member is unable to resolve the problem after having made reasonable effort, assistance from Administration should be solicited.
  - 4. As a final step, the faculty member and administrator may request to confer with the parent or guardian.

After a thorough investigation of the problem, the administrator shall determine a course of action.

# 2. Major Discipline Cases

Acts directed against person or property but whose consequences do not seriously endanger the health of others in the school. The following examples are included, but are not intended to be allinclusive.

- 1. Minor vandalism of school property or personal property on school premises
- 2. Minor theft of school or personal property
- 3. Truancy
- 4. Smoking or use of tobacco products
- 5. Insubordination or disrespect toward staff member Uncooperative behavior in dealing with teacher, administrator, or other staff

A. Acts which result in violence to another person or property or which pose a direct threat to the safety of others in the school. The following examples are included, but are not intended to be all-inclusive.

- 1. Threats made against a member of the staff
- 2. Physical assault on a member of the staff
- 3. Major vandalism of school property or personal property while on school premises
- 4. Major theft of school or personal property
- 5. Abuse of alcohol and other drugs (see Board policy)

B. The major cases of discipline listed in A and B above, because of their serious nature, require prompt disciplinary action, including the involvement of local law enforcement authorities, home and school visitors, social workers or counselors when deemed necessary.

# 3. School Suspensions

- A. Out of School suspension shall be the sole prerogative of the building administrator.
  - 1. Prior to any suspension, the student will be given notice of the reason for the suspension and have an opportunity to respond. Proper notice of the intended suspension need not be given when it is
  - clear that the health, safety, and welfare of the school community are threatened.
  - 2. Communication to the parents or guardians will follow the suspension action by the school.

## B. Definitions and procedures

- 1. Suspension from school is an exclusion from class or school for a period of 1 to 10 consecutive days.
- 2. When the out-of-school suspension exceeds 3 school days, the student and parent shall be given the opportunity for an informal hearing.
- 3. Students are responsible for contacting their teacher via email or a phone call about what work is to be completed while they are suspended. Students shall have the responsibility to make up exams and work missed while being disciplined by suspension and shall be permitted to complete these assignments.
- 4. When suspended, the student is not allowed to participate in any extra or co-curricular activities during the duration of the suspension.
- 5. In the event a student received an in-school suspension, the student will be given an assignment from an instructor and/ or administrator to be completed while serving the suspension. Such assignment shall be lengthy enough to provide sufficient work for the duration of the suspension. This assignment should be realistic and relative to the student's course work.
- 6. Suspensions will not run consecutively beyond the 10 school day period.
- 7. When a student is suspended from the CTCLC, h e or she is also suspended at the home school.
- 8. When a student is suspended from the home school, he or she is also suspended at the CTCLC.

#### 4. Expulsion

A. Expulsion from school can only be administered by the Board of Education, of the home school district, for a period exceeding 10 school days and may be permanent expulsion from the school rolls. All expulsions require a prior formal hearing.

B. If for any reason the continuance of a pupil in a CTCLC program is not desirable, he/she shall be returned to his resident school upon the recommendation of the Director. During the period prior to the decision by the School in a removal case, the student shall be placed in his normal class except if it is determined after an informal hearing that a student's presence in his normal class would constitute a threat to the health, safety, morals and welfare of others, and it is not possible for Board action within the period of suspension, the student may be excluded from CTCLC for more than ten (10) days. Any student so excluded shall be provided with alternative education that may include home study.

## 5. Hearings

A. Education is a statutory right and students must be afforded all appropriate elements of due process if they are to be excluded from school. In a case involving a possible expulsion, the student is entitled to a formal hearing, which is a fundamental element of due process.

- B. The purpose of the informal hearing is to enable the student to meet with the appropriate school official to explain the circumstances surrounding the event for which the student is being suspended or to show why the student should not be suspended.
  - 1. The informal hearing is meant to encourage the student's parents or guardians to meet with the CTCLC principal to discuss ways future offenses can be avoided.
  - 2. The following due process requirements are to be observed in regard to the informal hearing.
    - a. Notification of the reasons for the suspension shall be given in writing to the parents or guardians, and to the student.
    - b. Sufficient notice of the time and place of the informal hearing shall be given.
    - c. A student has a right to question any witnesses present at the hearing.
    - d. A student has the right, as a student, to speak and produce witnesses on their own behalf.
    - e. The district shall offer to hold the informal hearing when the out-of-school suspension exceeds 3 school days.

# **6. CORRECTIVE PHYSICAL INTERVENTION**

A. Reasonable force may be used by all staff members in response to offenses such as, but not limited to:

- 1. Quelling a disturbance
- 2. Obtaining possession of weapons or other dangerous objects
- 3. The purpose of self-defense
- 4. The protection of persons or property

# Reasonable Physical Force

Reasonable physical force will be used when deemed necessary in the judgment of the Director or Principal . Examples of the use of reasonable physical force to quell a disturbance or for protection of persons or property would include, among others: the direct defiance of a reasonable request and to cease obscenities or abusive language directed at another person

#### **CHART OF LEVELS OF INFRACTIONS**

# DISCIPLINE/CONDUCT CODE LEVEL 1

## Description

Level 1 behavior includes misconduct on the part of the student that impedes orderly classroom procedures or interferes with the orderly operation of the school.

#### **Procedures**

- 1. Immediate and consistent intervention by the teacher who is supervising the student or who observes the behavior.
- 2. The teacher or administrator is responsible for maintaining anecdotal records of offenses committed by students and the disciplinary action taken against them.
- 3. The teacher may wish to discuss the misbehavior with a parent, administrator and/or other personnel. In some cases when necessary, administration may intervene.

## **Examples and Recommendations**

Cheating or lying	A-B-H-K
Cutting class	A-B-F-H-K
Horseplay	A-B-D-I-J-K
Inappropriate wearing apparel	B-F-I-J-K
Loud boisterous noise	
Minor defacing of school property	
(writing on desks, etc.)	A-B-F-K
Possession/use of non-instructional items	A-B-I-J-K
Public displays of emotion and affection	A-B-I-K
Running in classrooms, halls, cafeteria, etc	B-I-J-K
Tardiness to school/class	B-D-F-I-K
Throwing objects	A-B-F-I-K
Sleeping in class	A-B-E-I-J-K
Violation of procedures established by instructor	

# **Disciplinary Options/Responses**

- A = Verbal reprimand
- B = Personal talk
- C = Suspension
- D = Withdrawal of privileges
- E = Special assignment
- F = Telephone call or letter to parent
- G = Parental conference
- H = Guidance referral
- I = Warning

J = Office detention/In-school suspension

K = In-school detention

NOTE: Level 1 EXAMPLES and DISCIPLINARY OPTIONS/ RESPONSES are not limited to those provided. One or several DISCIPLINARY OPTIONS may be utilized as indicated above.

# DISCIPLINE/CONDUCT CODE LEVEL 2

#### **Description**

These infractions, which often result from the continuation of LEVEL 1 misbehavior(s), require the intervention of personnel on the Administrative level, because the use of LEVEL 1 disciplinary responses/options has failed to correct the situation. Also included in this level are misbehaviors that tend to disrupt the orderly climate and conduct of the school. They are serious enough to require corrective action on the part of Administrative personnel.

#### **Procedures**

- 1. Referral to Administrator.
- 2. Administrator meets with the student and/or teacher to establish the most appropriate response.
- 3. The teacher is informed of the Administrator's action.
- 4. Parents are notified of the student's misbehavior.
- 5. An accurate record of the offenses committed by students and disciplinary actions levied against them shall be maintained by the Administrator.

# **Examples and Recommendations**

Continuation of unmodified Level 1 misbehaviors	B-D-E-F
Acting in an insubordinate manner	B-C-D-E
Bus disturbance	A-B-D
Cafeteria disturbance	A-B-D
Cutting class (repeated offenses)	C-D-F
Dressing in a manner as to cause disruption in the	
educational process	A-B-D-E-F
Falsification of records, excuses, passes, schedules, etc.	B-D-F
Leaving school grounds without permission	C-D-F
Loitering in unauthorized areas of the building/grounds	A-B-C-D
Misbehavior at a school sponsored activity	A-B-C-D-E-F
Possession of obscene materials	A-B-D-E-F
Showing flagrant disrespect to school in word or gesture	D-E-F
Smoking or use of tobacco products	A-B-D-E-F

Truancy	A-B-C-D-F
Use of obscene language or gestures	A-B-D

# **Disciplinary Options/Responses**

- A- Warning
- B- In-school detention
- C- Withdrawal of privileges
- D- Out-of-school suspension
- E- Parental conference and/or telephone call to parent
- F- Referral to outside agency
- G- Civil fine not to exceed \$50.00

# DISCIPLINE/CONDUCT CODE LEVEL 3

## Description

These infractions sometimes result from the continuation of LEVEL 1 and/or LEVEL 2 misbehaviors. Also included are acts against persons or property. Some of the infractions have consequences that might endanger the health or safety of others in the school.

These acts might be considered criminal but most frequently can be handled by the disciplinary mechanism in the school. Corrective measures that the school should take depend on the extent of the school's resources for correcting the situation in the best interest of all students and personnel.

#### **Procedures**

- 1. The Administrator initiates disciplinary action by investigating the infraction and, if necessary, conferring with the teacher on the consequences.
- 2. The Administrator meets with the student and confers with the parent about the student's misconduct and the resulting disciplinary actions.
- 3. The Administrator maintains an accurate record of offenses and disciplinary actions taken with regard to level three infractions.

# **Examples and Recommendations**

Continuation of unmodified Level 1 and/or Level 2	
misbehaviors	A-B-D
Attempting or breaking into another student's locker	B-C-D-F-I
Assault and/or battery on another student	A-B-C-D-I
Dissemination of unauthorized materials	B-I
Extortion	C-I

Fighting	B-D-I
Indecent exposure	
Intimidation: threat to student(s) and/or school	
personnel	A-B-C-D-I
. Unwarranted pulling of fire alarm	
Theft/possession/sale of another's property	
Vandalism (minor)	B-D-F-I
Violations of the vehicle code	B-D-E-I

# **Disciplinary Options/Responses**

A = Temporary removal from class

B = Out-of-school suspension

C = Parental conference and/or telephone call to parent

D = Withdrawal of privileges

E = Restitution of property and damages

F = Referral to outside agencies

G = Charges under criminal code

H = Referral to appropriate law enforcement agencies

I = Arrest made with appropriate law enforcement agencies

J = Office detention/In-school suspension

NOTE: Level 3 EXAMPLES and DISCIPLINARYOPTIONS/RESPONSES are not limited to those provided

# DISCIPLINE/CONDUCT CODE LEVEL 4

# **Description**

Disciplinary action under LEVEL 4 could result from the continuation of lower level offenses. Also included are: acts that result in violence to another person(s) or property that pose a direct threat to the safety of others in the school.

These acts are clearly criminal in nature and are so serious that they always require administrative action resulting in the immediate removal of the student from the school.

The intervention of law enforcement authorities and/or action by the Board of School Directors may also be required.

#### **Procedures**

- 1. The Administrator verifies the offense and, if necessary, confers with the teacher involved before meeting with the student.
- 2. The student is IMMEDIATELY SUSPENDED FROM SCHOOL and parents are notified. Law enforcement officials may also be contacted.
- 3. The Administrator completes and submits a complete and accurate report of the misconduct and corrective action taken to the Superintendent and Director for possible action by the Board of School Directors.

# **Examples and Recommendations**

Examples and resolutional and the second sec
Continuation of levels 1, 2 and/or 3 misbehaviors A-G-H
Assault and/or battery on school personnel A-C-G-H
Arson A-C-G-H
Bomb threat A-B-C-G-H
Engaging in any other conduct contrary to the criminal code or ordinances
of the Commonwealth/community on school grounds or at school
sponsored activities A-C-G-H-B
Engaging in conduct so disruptive as to interfere with the orderly operation
of the schools or which create a clear and present danger to the health
and welfare of the school community A-C-G-H-B
Harassment of school personnel A-C-G-H
Leading or participating in a riot A-C-G-H
Possession/use/furnishing/selling of controlled substances alcohol or
drugs) A-F-G-H-B
Possession/use/transfer of dangerous weapons or
explosives
Setting off incendiary devices
(firecrackers, smoke bombs, etc.)A-C-B-G-H
Vandalism of school property or personal property
of school personnel

# **Disciplinary Options/Responses**

- A = All proven offenses in Level 4 have a mandatory 10-day suspension with an informal hearing
- B = Referral to appropriate law enforcement agencies
- C = Referral for psychological services
- D = Referral for alcohol/drug rehabilitation
- E = Restitution
- F = Alcohol/drug policy
- G = Formal hearing with Joint Operating Committee
- H = Expulsion

NOTE: Level 4 EXAMPLES and DISCIPLINARY OPTIONS/ RESPONSES are not limited to those provided. One or several of DISCIPLINARY OPTIONS may be utilized as indicated above.

#### IN-SCHOOL DETENTION

In-school detention may be scheduled during the school year. A student can be issued in-school detention for an infraction of any school rules. Inschool detention time will be from 8:45 A.M. - 11:00 A.M. and from 12:45 P.M. - 3:00 P.M. Students will not be notified in advance of their scheduled detention time.

Failure to report to an assigned in-school detention will result in disciplinary action in the form of out of school suspension. Privileges may be withdrawn for students who repeatedly are issued detention. This includes driving privileges, cooperative education, field trips, and other programs or assemblies. Grades and certificates will be held until which time a student makes-up the in-school detention obligation. Detentions will be carried over to the following year if not served.

#### RESTRICTED MOVEMENT

The Restricted Movement Policy has been formulated in an effort to avoid interruptions in a student's educational program due to his or her misbehavior. Students may be placed on restricted movement for such violations as excessive class cutting, an excessive number of detentions, being found in an unauthorized area, causing a disruption in the classroom, and lateness to school.

- 1. Students on restricted movement will report to the main office for a form prior to beginning of class and return it to the main office before leaving school for the day. Failure to do so will result in further discipline action.
- 2. At the beginning of the class period, the student must present the restricted movement paper to each teacher for a signature. Comments regarding behavior, attitude, timeliness, preparedness, and participation may be entered by the instructor. Positive comments are encouraged where appropriate. Serious negative comments or school violations will generate further disciplinary action.
- 3. While on restricted movement, a student may be excluded from the activities held during the school day, including committee work, assemblies, or student government activities. During assemblies students on restricted movement will report to a designated room.
- 4. Students on restricted movement may not leave the classroom except to go to the nurse, to report to the guidance office with a previously arranged pass, or to use the lavatory.

# ALL SECONDARY STUDENTS APPEALS PROCEDURE

#### Introduction:

In order to provide an unrestricted and open-ended input or feedback system, the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County has instituted the following "Appeals Procedure". Should anyone desire to oppose, confirm, modify, or question any program, process, plan or expenditure related to student life at the CTCLC, please follow these steps:

#### Procedure:

# Step 1. Contact the Assistant Principal or Director.

The initial contact person should be the Assistant Principal or Director.

A. Should the appeal involve a special population's student, the Assistant Principal or Director will refer the appeal to the Special Needs Coordinator. The Coordinator will record all information on the SNP Appeals Procedure Form. The co-coordinator shall guide the form through the procedure and log appropriate entries.

B. Should the appeal involve a non-special population's student the Assistant Principal or Director shall record all information and guide the appeal through the procedure and log appropriate entries.

# Step 2. Review Form and Reply to Initial Statements.

Within five (5) working days, the coordinator or assistant principal will review the information with administration, draft an initial reply, and provide it to the appellant. If the appellant is satisfied at this point, proceed to the final step.

# Step 3. Present to Participatory Planning Committee.

A. If the appeal is not resolved at STEP 2, the coordinator and a representative from administration will present the appeal to The Participatory Planning Committee no later than twenty (20) working days after the completion of STEP 2. The appellant will be invited to attend this presentation and participate in any discussions. Following the presentation, the committee will make a recommendation to administration concerning the appeal.

B. If the appeal is not resolved in STEP 2, the Assistant Principal will present the appeal to the Director no later than twenty (20) working days after completion of STEP 2. The appellant will be invited to attend this presentation and participate in any discussions. Following the presentation, the Administrative Director will make a determination concerning the appeal

# **Step 4.** Act upon Recommendation of P.P.C. (Appropriate Administrative Level) or Director

The appropriate administrative level shall act upon the recommendation of STEP 3 within ten (10) working days of its submission. If the appellant is satisfied with this action, proceed to the final step. If the appellant is not satisfied with this action or if the appropriate administrative level deems it necessary, proceed to STEP 5.

# **Step 5.** Present to the Joint Operating Committee.

If determined by STEP 4, the appeal shall be presented to The Joint Operating Committee of The Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The J.O.C. shall take action on the appeal at this meeting and the appellant shall be notified. The action taken by the J.O.C. shall be final except as allowed by law.

# Step 6. The Final Step

A. The Special Needs Population Coordinator shall inform the Participatory Planning Committee of the final resolution of the appeal at its next meeting. The Appeals Procedure Form shall become part of the minutes of the P.P.C. Meeting. Implementation of the resolution shall be overseen by the coordinator.

B. The Assistant Principal shall inform the appellant in writing of the final resolution of the appeal within twenty (20) days and oversee the implementation of the resolution.

#### APPEAL TO THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Should the appellant NOT BE SATISFIED with the action taken at any step in this procedure, the appeal may be presented, for further resolution, to:

BUREAU OF CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 333 MARKET STREET • HARRISBURG • PA 17126-0333 (717) 787-8022

# CTCLC - STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SAP)

In Pennsylvania, every school is required to have a plan for identifying and assisting students who experience *barriers to learning*. The CTCLC–SAP team follows PA's Department of Education guidelines and is *confidential*.

A **SAP** team is comprised of successfully trained individuals from CTCLC's staff and Lackawanna community agencies to provide assessment and support to students and their parents or guardians as a team. We do not diagnose, treat, or refer your child for treatment. We will provide you with information; the goal is to help your child succeed in school.

Anyone can refer a student: parent, teacher, principal, peers, or self-referrals. Participation is voluntary. If you feel your child needs help, please call the school (570-346-8471) and ask to speak with a member of the SAP team.

#### **CTCLC - BULLY PREVENTION**

CTCLC is committed to protecting students from all forms of bullying behavior. Every student has the right to attend school in a non-threatening environment where he/she is treated with dignity and respect. As a school community, CTCLC is committed to working together with students, parents (guardians), and sending school districts to provide a safe and secure environment

for students and staff.

CTCLC's Anti-bullying program will maintain this philosophy each school year.

See CTC's Harassment Policy on page 28

#### Characteristics:

- 1. Bullying involves aggressive behavior (physical, emotional, or social in nature)
- 2. Repetitive pattern over time
- 3. Imbalance of power or strength

If your child is being bullied, he or she is strongly encouraged to tell someone (teacher, administration, school nurse, guidance, parent). Bullying behaviors will be investigated and handled in a professional and fair manner.

#### GENERAL OPERATING INFORMATION

#### SCHOOL LOCKERS

School lockers are the property of the school and not the student. School lockers are used to store lab clothes, lab supplies, and other personal property. Lockers must be locked at all times. Students are not to bring large sums of money, jewelry, or other valuables to school. CTCLC will not be responsible for the loss or theft of personal property. Administration has the right to inspect any student locker(s) at any time without student permission.

School lockers may be checked by a police K-9 unit at the request of administration at any time.

#### LOST/FOUND

Items found should be turned in to the Main Office so that owners may claim them as soon as possible. Theft of materials should be reported to the instructor and/or office immediately. It is strongly

suggested that money and articles of value not be placed in lockers, brought on the school bus, or into the building. If this becomes necessary, these items should be left in the Main Office. The school is not responsible for the theft or damage of any personal property. This includes vehicles and items left in vehicles, lockers, or classroom areas.

#### STUDENT SEARCHES

School lockers, desks, locker rooms, roadways, and parking areas are the property of CTCLC. The use of such property by students is a privilege, not a right. The reasonable expectation of privacy that students enjoy does not extend to lockers, desks, or vehicles parked or driven on school property. CTCLC reserves the right to search lockers, desks, and vehicles on school property when necessary for the protection of the health, welfare, and maintenance of discipline in the classroom or on school grounds. This may include random, blanket, periodic, or sweeping searches, and may include the use of animals or mechanical means in an effort to detect the presence of illegal substances, weapons, or other prohibited articles or materials and/or facsimiles of illegal substances, weapons, or other prohibited articles or materials. Random, periodic, or sweeping searches of all lockers will be conducted without regard for any individual suspicion.

Searches of students, student clothing, and student possessions may be conducted if the administration determines that a reasonable level of suspicion exists that a violation of school policy has occurred.

#### VISITORS

Visitors are welcome at the Career Technology Center. All visitors are to enter through the Main Entrance, present a valid photo identification (driver's license), and register at the Main Office as soon as they enter the building to obtain a visitor's badge. A visitor's badge must be worn at all times while visiting CTCLC. Visitors not abiding by the rules will be asked to leave the building.

# EMERGENCY CARDS/HANDBOOK VERIFICATION FORMS AND SHOP PERMITS

Students are required to return their completed emergency cards, handbook verification forms, and shop permits to the school within the time specified by administration. Students who do not return their completed forms within the specified time will face disciplinary consequences and will not be permitted to work in the lab areas.

#### STUDENT INVOLVEMENT WITH MEDIA

Students participate in a number of classes and school-sponsored activities during the school year. Certain classes and activities may be recorded by the news media, CTCLC personnel, or other students.

From time to time, student pictures, classwork, or school activities information may be included in school newsletters or released to the local media.

Any media interaction with students and the posting of student pictures, class work, and/or school activities information must be approved in advance by the Administration.

This involvement by students in classes and school-sponsored events, and the sharing of education techniques and experiences, is intended to enhance and enrich the educational opportunities of all students and staff. CTCLC's experiences and involvement in these areas have been positive.

Parents must complete and return the media release form located on page 69 of this handbook.

# 2022-2023 SCHOOL CALENDAR

28, 29, 30 31	August Instructor In-Service Days First Day for Students
4	September Labor Day-School Closed
9	October Columbus Day-School Closed
10 23 23, 24, 27	November Veterans Day-School Closed Early Release, Fall Break Thanksgiving Holiday-School Closed (Nov. 23-27)
25-31	<b>December</b> Christmas Holiday-School Closed (Dec. 25-31)
1 15	January New Year's Day-School Closed Martin Luther King Jr. Day-School Closed
16 19	<b>February</b> School Closed-InstructorIn-Service Day Presidents' Day- School Closed
28, 29	March Spring Break-School Closed (28 Potential Snow Make Up Day)
01	April Spring Break-School Closed-Potential Snow Make Up Day
23 27	May CTCLC Senior Awards Night Memorial Day-School Closed
10	June Tentative Last Day of School

#### SAFE SCHOOL PRACTICE

CTCLC is dedicated to providing all who enter its campus or participate in its programs a safe and secure environment. This includes the maintenance of a safe and secure facility, enforcement of applicable safety policies and procedures, and the encouragement of any person to report in confidence and without fear of reprisal for any situation or activity which compromises the safety and security of any person. The policies and procedures of CTCLC pertaining to health and safety, emergency management, and crisis management may be reviewed by contacting the office of the Director during normal business hours. It is important for you as students and parents to understand that CTCLC is mandated by the Pennsylvania Department of Education to maintain a memo of understanding with local authorities and are required to contact the local authorities on issues or concerns pertaining to violence, weapons, substance abuse, harassment, hate crimes or any other action deemed detrimental to a healthy learning environment. This zero tolerance policy is intended to provide our community with a safe and secure educational environment.

The Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability or age in its programs or activities and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups. Inquiries may be directed to the Career Technology Center's Title IX Coordinator or the Section 504 Coordinator at 3201 Rockwell Avenue, Scranton, PA 18508 or 570-346-8471.

# FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS AND PRIVACY/ PROTECTION OF PUPIL RIGHTS AMENDMENT NOTIFICATIONS

Notification of Rights under FERPA for Secondary Schools The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) a ffor d parents and students over 18 years of age ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records. These rights are:

(1) The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days of the day the School receives a request for access. Parents or eligible students should submit to the School principal or appropriate school official a written request that identifies the record(s) they wish to inspect. The School official will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. The school is not required to provide copies and may charge a fee if copies are requested.

- (2) The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible student believe are inaccurate. Parents or eligible students may ask the School to amend a record that they believe is inaccurate. They should write the School principal or appropriate school official, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed, and specify why it is inaccurate. If the School decides not to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the School will notify the parent or eligible student of the decision and advise them of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.
- (3) The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. A school official is a person employed by the School as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); a person serving on the School Board; a person or company with whom the School has contracted to perform a special task (such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or a parent or student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. Upon request, the School discloses education records without consent to officials of another school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll.
- (4) The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the School District to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is listed below:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202-4605

# Google (G) Suite Parent or Guardian Consent

## To Parents and Guardians,

At the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County, we use G Suite or Education, and we are seeking your permission to provide and manage a G Suite for Education account for your child. G Suite for Education is a set of education productivity tools from Google including Gmail, Calendar, Docs, Classroom, and more used by tens of millions of students and teachers around the world. At the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County, students will use their G Suite accounts to:

- Complete assignments.
- · Communicate with their teachers.
- [If applicable] sign into their Chromebooks.
- · Learn 21st century digital citizenship skills.

The following section titled "G Suite for Education Notice to Parents and Guardians" provides answers to common questions about what Google can and can't do with your child's personal information, including:

- · What personal information does Google collect?
- How does Google use this information?
- Will Google disclose my child's personal information?
- Does Google use student personal information for users in K-12 schools to target advertising?
- Can my child share information with others using the G Suite for Education account?

Please read it carefully, let us know of any questions, and then sign below to indicate that you've read the notice and give your consent. If you don't provide your consent, we will not create a G Suite for Education account for your child.

Please note the following: Students who cannot use Google services may need to use other software to complete assignments or collaborate with peers.

#### G Suite for Education Notice to Parents and Guardians

This section describes the personal information we provide to Google for these accounts and how Google collects, uses, and discloses personal information from students in connection with these accounts.

Using their G Suite for Education accounts, students may access and use the following "Core Services" offered by Google

- · Gmail (including Inbox by Gmail) · Calendar · Classroom · Drive
- · Docs · Forms · Groups · Keep · Sheets · Sites · Slides · Vault

In addition, we also allow students to access certain other Google services with their G Suite for Education accounts.

Specifically, your child may have access to the following "Additional Services":

· Google Maps · Google Meets · YouTube

Google provides information about the information it collects, as well as how it uses and discloses the information it collects from G Suite for Education accounts in its G Suite for Education Privacy Notice. You can read that notice online at:

https://gsuite.google.com/terms/education\_privacy.html. You should review this information in its entirety, but following are answers to some common questions:

# What personal information does Google collect?

When creating a student account, the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County may provide Google with certain personal information about the student, including, for example, a name, email address, and password. Google may also collect personal information directly from students, such as telephone number for account recovery or a profile photo added to the G Suite for Education account.

When a student uses Google services, Google also collects information based on the use of those services. This includes: device information, such as the hardware model, operating system version, unique device identifiers, and mobile network information including phone number; log information, including details of how a user used Google services, device event information, and the user's Internet protocol (IP) address; location information, as determined by various technologies including IP address, GPS, and other sensors; unique application numbers, such as application version number; and cookies or similar technologies which are used to collect and store information about a browser or device, such as preferred language and other settings.

# How does Google use this information?

In G Suite for Education Core Services, Google uses student personal information to provide, maintain, and protect the services. Google does not serve ads in the Core Services or use personal information collected in the Core Services for advertising purposes.

In Google Additional Services, Google uses the information collected from all Additional Services to provide, maintain, protect and improve them, to develop new ones, and to protect Google and its users. Google may also use this information to offer tailored content, such as more relevant search results. Google may combine personal information from one service with information, including personal information, from other Google services.

# Does Google use student personal information for users in K-12 schools to target advertising?

No. For G Suite for Education users in primary and secondary (K-12) schools, Google does not use any user personal information (or any information associated with an G Suite for Education Account) to target ads, whether in Core Services or in other Additional Services accessed while using a G Suite for Education account.

# Can my child share information with others using the G Suite for Education account?

We may allow students to access Google services such as Google Docs and Sites, which include features where users can share information with others publicly. When users share information publicly, it may be index able by search engines, including Google.

# Will Google disclose my child's personal information?

Google will not share personal information with companies, organizations and individuals outside of Google unless one of the following circumstances applies:

- With parental or guardian consent. Google will share personal information with companies, organizations or individuals outside of Google when it has parents' consent (for users below the age of consent), which may be obtained through G Suite for Education schools.
- With the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County. G Suite for Education accounts, because they are school-managed accounts, give administrators access to information stored in them.

- For external processing. Google may provide personal information to our affiliates or other trusted businesses or persons to process it for Google, based on Google's instructions and in compliance with the G Suite for Education privacy notice and any other appropriate confidentiality and security measures.
- For legal reasons. Google will share personal information with companies, organizations or individuals outside of Google if it has a good-faith belief that access, use, and preservation or disclosure of the information is reasonably necessary to:
- •meet any applicable law, regulation, legal process or enforceable governmental request.
- •enforce applicable Terms of Service, including investigation of potential violations.
- •detect, prevent, or otherwise address fraud, security or technical issues.
- •protect against harm to the rights, property or safety of Google, Google users or the public as required or permitted by law.

Google also shares non-personal information -- such as trends about the use of its services -- publicly and with its partners.

# What choices do I have as a parent or guardian?

First, you can consent to the collection and use of your child's information by Google. If you don't provide your consent, we will not create a G Suite for Education account for your child, and Google will not collect or use your child's information as described in this notice.

## What if I have more questions or would like to read further?

If you have questions about our use of Google's G Suite for Education accounts or the choices available to you, please contact Karla Carlucci, Ed. D. If you want to learn more about how Google collects, uses, and discloses personal information to provide services to us, please review the *G Suite for Education Privacy Center* (at https://www.google.com/edu/trust/), the G Suite for Education Privacy Notice (at https://gsuite.google.com/terms/education\_privacy.html), and the *Google Privacy Policy* (at https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/privacy/).

The Core G Suite for Education services are provided to us under **Google's Apps or Education agreement** (at https://www.google.com/apps/intl/en/terms/education\_terms.html)

I give permission for the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County to create/maintain a G Suite for Education account for my child and for Google to collect, use, and disclose information about my child only for the purposes described in the notice above.

Thank you,

Karla Carlucci, Ed. D.

All forms can be found at <a href="https://ctclc.cte360.com/">https://ctclc.cte360.com/</a> or by using the QR code below Please access them to complete the necessary forms. <a href="forms must be completed electronically!">Forms must be completed electronically!</a>



I have read and understand the rules and regulations of the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County as outlined in the 2023-2024 Student Handbook.

All forms can be found at <a href="https://ctclc.cte360.com/">https://ctclc.cte360.com/</a> or by using the QR code below Please access them to complete the necessary forms. <a href="forms must be completed electronically!">Forms must be completed electronically!</a>



I have read and understand the rules, regulations, and procedures concerning attendance at the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County as outlined in the 2023-2024 Student Handbook.

A parent must call the Career Technology Center, (570) 346-8471, the day of absence and report the student absent giving the reason for the absence.

Valid policy acceptable excuses must be returned to the instructor within the next three (3) school days (excluding weekends). After the third (3rd) day the excuse will not be accepted as valid.

Absences unaccounted for within three (3) days will be marked unexcused and the student may be subject to disciplinary measures.

It is imperative that students return excuse for absence not only to their home school, but also to CTCLC, as absence will be marked unexcused should CTCLC not receive a proper excuse.

When a student is absent from CTCLC they are restricted from all CTCLC's functions and activities for that day; onsite and offsite.

All forms can be found at <a href="https://ctclc.cte360.com/">https://ctclc.cte360.com/</a> or by using the QR code below Please access them to complete the necessary forms. <a href="Forms must be completed">Forms must be completed electronically!</a>



#### Media Consent Waiver

Parent/Guardian: Please choose to give or to not give consent to student and sign and date the appropriate space.

# I GIVE MY CONSENT to CTCLC to allow the picture or voice of or I DO NOT GIVE MY CONSENT to CTCLC to allow the picture or voice of voice of Full name of student

to be used in good taste, including television, magazine and newspapers that would demonstrate the quality of CTCLC's educational program. I understand that I will not receive any compensation, neither now nor in the future for the above.

All forms can be found at <a href="https://ctclc.cte360.com/">https://ctclc.cte360.com/</a> or by using the QR code below Please access them to complete the necessary forms. <a href="forms must be completed electronically!">Forms must be completed electronically!</a>



# **Authorization for Medication During School Hours**

(Printed Full Name of	Student)	 

Must receive the following medication during school hours in order to maintain sufficient health to participate in the school program at the Career Technology Center of Lackawanna County:

All forms can be found at <a href="https://ctclc.cte360.com/">https://ctclc.cte360.com/</a> or by using the QR code below Please access them to complete the necessary forms. <a href="Forms must be completed electronically!">Forms must be completed electronically!</a>

